
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

January 05, 2021 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 

 

Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman for 2021 

  

Agenda Approval 
  

Presentations 
1. Morgan Medical Center FY2020 Audit Presentation 

  

Minutes 
2. December 01, 2020 

3. December 15, 2020 

4. December 17, 2020 

  

Consent Agenda 
5. Motion to accept as information the December 2020 payables to include General Fund in the 

amount of $478,843.44, TSPLOST in the amount of $150,533.26, SPLOST in the amount of 

$197,363.54, General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $37,410.79 and the December 

2020 financials. 

  

Time Certain 
 

11:00 AM Planning Commission 
  

Planning Commission New Business 
6. James & Stephanie Harden are requesting a variance to the rear setback for 5.39 acres 

located at 1050 Sailview Drive (Tax Parcel 065C-001). 

7. Stuart Magill is requesting conditional use approval of an accessory dwelling on 15.1 acres 

located at 1200 White Oak Way (Tax Parcel 066C-022). 

  

New Business 
8. County Manager Report 

9. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

- 1 -



December 01, 2020 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION.   

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners 

Ronald H. Milton, Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, Procurement Director Mark Williams, County 

Attorney Christian Henry, and County Clerk Leslie Brandt.       

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL 
  

Motion made by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve agenda 

with the following addition:  Real Estate under Executive.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MINUTES 
November 03, 2020 

November 11, 2020 

November 17, 2020 

November 18, 2020 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the minutes 

as presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

   

CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion to accept as information the November 2020 payables to include General Fund in the 

amount of $695,271.33, TSPLOST in the amount of $112,451.58, SPLOST in the amount of 

$867,321.15, General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $149,650.75 and the November 

2020 financials 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve the consent 

agenda as presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT - MORGAN COUNTY FOUNDATION, INC. 

To comply with COVID-19 social distancing guidelines, the County needs a location to pull 

potential jurors that will allow for social distancing.  A committee was formed that looked at 

various locations around Morgan County.  It was determined that the Morgan County Cultural 

Center Annex meets all necessary requirements to have a large group gathered for the primary 

focus of selecting jurors for upcoming terms of court in Morgan County.  It is also possible that 

this location may be used as a court location if the necessary social distancing guidance cannot 

be accomplished at the courthouse. 

 

The lease of the facility will be $500 per day that it is used for the stated purposes in the lease.  

This will be paid out of the county general fund. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to approve the lease 

agreement between Morgan County and Morgan County Foundation, Inc. as presented. 

Unanimously Approved. 

 

2020-RES-012 - RESOLUTION - ESTABLISHING ADDITIONAL FACILITIES TO BE 

USED AS A MORGAN COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX 

This resolution will formally establish the Madison-Morgan Cultural Center as an additional 

facility to be used as a County Courthouse Annex for the Superior Court of Morgan County to 

conduct court related business to comply with COVID-19 social distancing guidelines. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the 2020-

RES-012 Resolution establishing the Madison-Morgan Cultural Center to be used as a Morgan 

County Courthouse Annex as presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

- 2 -



December 01, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

SECTION 5311 GRANT APPLICATION 

This grant approves the split funding between the FDA and the County for the transit program 

for FY2022. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the resolution 

of authorization as presented for the FY2022 5311 grant application and authorize the Chairman 

to sign all documents related to the grant. Unanimously Approved. 

 

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

No public comments were made. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session 

10:38 a.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION-PERSONNEL & REAL ESTATE 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Executive 

Session to discuss personnel and real estate. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit 

in Executive Session Legal Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Executive 

Session and enter regular session at 11:02 a.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MICHAEL DEATON IS REQUESTING A VARIANCE TO THE MAXIMUM SIZE FOR 

AN ACCESSORY DWELLING LOCATED ON 10 ACRES LOCATED AT 2960 

BETHANY ROAD (TAX PARCEL 045-048B) 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner presented a request by Michael T. Deaton for a variance to the 

maximum size for an accessory dwelling for an existing structure located at 2960 Bethany Road. 

The primary residence and accessory dwelling are located on a 10-acre parcel with both houses 

at the front of the property. Both were constructed in 2017.  At that time, the ordinance required 

the accessory dwelling to be a maximum of 50% of the primary dwelling size. The primary 

dwelling is 1647 square feet. The accessory dwelling is 800 square feet. They are requesting to 

double the size of the accessory dwelling. 

 

The current accessory dwelling is 20 feet deep by 40 feet long. The applicant proposes to add 

another 20 feet to the back of the structure to double the square footage.  The structure is 

approximately 40 feet from the side property line, so if approved, the addition would not encroach 

into the side setback. 

 

Chapter 7.2, Section 7.2.2, of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance requires Conditional Use 

approval for an accessory dwelling. A variance must be requested if additional square footage is 

desired. Because this is a grandfathered accessory dwelling, the Applicant is only requesting the 

Variance. However, Section 7.2.2 also instructs property to be split for a second principal 

dwelling.   

 

The Applicant was advised by Staff to split the property, per the Ordinance.  However, the option 

to split the property is not currently available due to a 90-day moratorium that has been placed 

on all parcel splits in Morgan County as of October 20, 2020. 

 

The Planning Commission felt if the increase in size was allowed, it would result in two primary 

dwellings of almost identical size and would set a precedence.  The Planning Commission voted 

unanimously to recommend denial of the variance request. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents to speak: 

No one spoke in favor of the variance request. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed opponents to speak: 

No one spoke in opposition of the variance request. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Milton, seconded by Commissioner Ainslie to to deny the variance 

request.  Unanimously Denied. 

- 3 -



December 01, 2020 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

GTLZS, LLC IS REQUESTING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT, FROM C2 

(GENERAL COMMERCIAL) TO C3 (HEAVY COMMERCIAL) FOR A TOTAL OF 

10.19 ACRES LOCATED AT SEVEN ISLANDS ROAD AND BONNER LANE (TAX 

PARCEL 052-043) 

GTLZS, LLC is requesting Zoning Map Amendments for 2 parcels, with total combined acreage 

of 10.19 acres, located at the corner of Seven Islands Road and Bonner Lane.  Part of this property 

went before the Planning Commission in December of 2019 to rezone 1.19 acres from AG to C2. 

The applicants at the time said they intended to combine that parcel, 052-030F, with the 9 acres 

behind it, Tax Parcel 054-043. Those parcels were combined in February 2020. The entire 10.19 

acres are now shown as Tax Parcel 052-043.  

 

The gas station in front of the subject parcel is zoned C2, as are two properties across Seven 

Islands Road. The nearest C3 zoning in the county is on the Highway 441 by-pass at the formerly 

Watson property that was rezoned in 2018. 

 

In the Applicant’s letter, dated September 28, 2020, the proposed uses are listed as “general mini-

storage, covered and enclosed RV storage, and covered and enclosed boat storage, plus any other 

uses permitted in C3.” Staff asked the Applicant about the “other uses” and was told the only 

intended uses were mini-storage, RV storage and boat storage.   

 

The Morgan County Comprehensive Plan’s Character Area Map shows the area as Industrial. 

This designation was based on the presence of the quarry across Seven Islands Road.  According 

to the description of the Industrial designation, commercial uses are allowed, although the 

primary targeted uses are listed regional employers engaged in manufacturing, trucking, or 

production.   

 

The applicant points out in his letter that the location of the property seems to be compatible with 

the description for C3 zoning in the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Although C2 zoning is located adjacent to and across Seven Islands Road, there is no C3 zoning 

in the area. Consideration should be given to the potential spot-zoning nature of the request, as 

well as the compatibility of the request with the zoning designation description.  Also, 

consideration should be given to the Watson property on the Highway 441 by-pass, which was 

rezoned to C3 with no adjacent heavy commercial zoning (August 2018), as well as the 2 parcels 

on Highway 278 owned by Perco which we rezoned from C2 to C3 with only Industrial zoning 

nearby (August 2019). 

 

The Planning Commission agreed the uses were needed and talked about where the closest uses 

are to this location.  They did note concern of screening appearances.  Particularly screening from 

Seven Islands Road, and they did not feel that all C3 uses would be appropriate for this location.  

They were also concerned that a plan had not been submitted showing where the buildings would 

be located on that property. 

 

The Planning Commission voted 4-2 to recommend approval of the zoning application from C2 

to C3 with the following conditions: 

The property be limited to mini-warehouse storage and commercial parking (commercial parking 

covers the RV and Boat storage) and that the applicant must submit a landscape buffering plan 

to be approve by planning staff. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents to speak: 

John Stauss spoke in favor of the request. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed opponents to speak: 

No one spoke in opposition of the variance request. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Milton, seconded by Commissioner Harris to to approve the zoning 

map amendment, from C2 (general commercial) to C3 (heavy commercial) for a total of 10.19 

acres located at Seven Islands Road and Bonner Lane (tax parcel 052-043) with the conditions 

set by the Planning Commission, and any additional screening deemed necessary by the planning 

staff and that the only entrance be from Bonner Lane.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

- 4 -



December 01, 2020 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session 

and adjourn at 11:20 a.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

- 5 -



December 15, 2020 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners 

Ronald H. Milton, Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr. 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, County Attorney Christian Henry, Procurement 

Director Mark Williams, and County Clerk Leslie Brandt. 

 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve agenda with 

the following addition:  Transfer Station Barn Repairs under New Business.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

911/COMMUNICATIONS CONSOLE REPLACEMENTS 

The current consoles used by the Communications Department are over 15 years old and are not 

designed to hold the various equipment and monitors now required. The new consoles will be 

more streamlined, provide more efficient use of space and improve communication between 

dispatchers. Products from multiple companies were evaluated and Communications Director, 

Amanda Proctor recommended the consoles be purchased from Watson Consoles for $53,157.99. 

Funding for the project is included in the approved FY21 budget.  

 

Quotes Received 

Watson Consoles $53,157.99 

Xybix $45,557.09 

Russ Bassett $59,290.50 

 

Motion by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve the purchase of 

new consoles from Watson Consoles for $53,157.99.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE 2021 ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSES FOR THE 

FOLLOWING LOCATIONS: 

 Country Store - Shams Ghalib Kaba 

 HWY 83 Sandy Creek Country Store - Irfam F. Lakhani  

 Rainbow Food Mart - Namrata Sadana 

 The Pit Stop - Ujjwal Bastola 

 The River Store - Manjit Kaur 

 Golden Pond Valero - Thakorbhai Patel 

 Fairplay General Store - Sheryl F. Peters 

 Sandhu Food Mart - Kuljit S. Sandhu 

 Blue Springs Marina - Benjamin Smith 

 Buckhead General Store - Grady Butler 

 The Pit Stop - Santosh Pahars 

 

MOTION by Comm. Harris, seconded by Comm. Riden to approve the alcohol applications for 

2021 as listed above.  Unanimously Approved.   

SCBA PURCHASE REQUEST 

This purchase request for eight SCBA’s, is a continuation of the replacement plan for SCBA’s 

on all apparatus. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve the purchase of 

eight SCBA’s from Municipal Emergency Services (MES) for $64,809.76.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

- 6 -



December 15, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

IT REPLACEMENT VEHICLE 

A vehicle replacement for IT was included in the approved FY2021 budget.  Bids were sought  

from four dealers for a 2021 Ford Escape base model.  Two bids were received.  Management 

recommends purchasing from Covington Ford for $20.474.00 

 

 

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to approve the purchase 

of a 2021 Ford Escape from Covington Ford for $20,474.00.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

PURCHASE OF OPEN TOP DUMPSTERS 

After evaluation of needs, three 30 yard open top dumpsters need replaced for normal operations.  

Four 30 yard open top dumpsters are also needed for the planned Newborn Road manned site to 

separate different types of trash/recyclables.  Quotes were obtained from three providers.  

Management recommends purchasing from Baker’s Waste for $29,561.00.  Funding for the 

Newborn Road equipment was approved in the FY21 budget.  Funds for the replacement 

dumpsters will be transferred from contingency. 

 

Baker’s Waste Wastequip Dragon Products, LLC 

$29,561.00 $43,229.16 $41,150.00 

 

Motion by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to approve the purchase of 

seven 30 yard open top dumpsters from Baker’s Waste for $29,561.00.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

TRANSFER STATION BARN REPAIRS 

The barn at the transfer station needs structural repairs.  A corner support column is bent, several 

purlins and approximately 45 feet of metal siding must be replaced.  Bids were received from 

Peak Steal for $18,800.00 and Bradley Welding Service for $14,360.00. 

 

Motion by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Milton to award the project to 

Bradley Welding Service for $14,360.00.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

DISCUSSION OF DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

Discussion only.  The Board will review proposed regulation changes and submit feedback to 

Planning Director Chuck Jarrell.  A public hearing regarding the development regulations will 

be held in January 2021. 

 

BOARD VACANCIES 

 Development Authority Board 

 

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to reappoint Bob 

Hughes to the Development Authority Board with term beginning 01/01/2021 and ending 

12/31/2024.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 Tax Assessors Board 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Ainslie to reappoint 

Marcus Schuchs and Mary Ellen Anton to the Tax Assessors Board with term beginning 

01/01/2021 and ending 12/31/2024.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 Council on Aging 

 

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to reappoint 

Geraldine Cooper to the Council on Aging Board with term beginning 01/01/2021 and 

ending 12/31/2023.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 Ag Board 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to appoint Lorrie 

Lavengood to fulfill the vacant term on the Ag Board with term ending 06/30/2023.  

Unanimously Approved. 

Covington Ford Akins Ford Wade Ford Courtesy Ford 

$20,474.00 $21,222.00 No response No response 

- 7 -



December 15, 2020 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 Library Board 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to appoint Melissa 

Sikorski to fulfill the vacant term on the Library Board with term ending 06/30/2026.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

COMMISSIONER LIAISON REPORTS 

Commissioners gave updates on Liaison assignments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

Public comments were made by: 

Gary Savage, Morgan County Resident 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session 

at 6:23 p.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION- POTENTIAL LITIGATION & REAL ESTATE 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Executive 

Session to discuss personnel at 6:30 p.m. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in 

Executive Session Legal Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Executive 

Session and adjourn at 6:55 p.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk        

- 8 -



December 17, 2020 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN A CALLED MEETING. 

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners 

Ronald H. Milton, Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr. 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, Procurement Director Mark Williams, and 

County Clerk Leslie Brandt. 

 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to approve agenda as 

presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

NON-TRUCK ROUTE SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST 

County Manager, Adam Mestres, presented a non-truck route special use permit request from 

Pittman Construction.  Pittman approached the county to request permission to use Seven Islands 

Road as a truck route during the 441-widening project (if they are awarded the bid).  The project 

duration is expected to last 40-48 months.  Currently, the county ordinance prohibits trucks from 

using county roadways as truck routes as they are not designed to sustain the heavy loads and 

traffic.  

 

If the request is permitted and if they are awarded the bid, Pittman has agreed to supply 1,000 

tons of deep hole patching (before, during and after the project), and to share 50% of the cost to 

resurface the full 6.7-mile length of the roadway at the end of the project. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed public comments  

Public comments were made by: 

Ryan Holliday, 2201 Seven Islands Road 

Sara Nash, 3620 Seven Islands Road 

Tommy Cathey, 4731 Bethany Road 

Jim Brooks, 1110 Cedar Grove Road 

John McMahon, 1410 Apalachee Woods Trail 

Charles Bruce, 4701 Seven Islands Road 

Cameron Michael, 1230 Cedar Grove Road 

Residents expressed concern over increased traffic, road sustainability and safety issues.  

Residents pleaded with the Board to deny the non-truck route special use request on Seven 

Islands Road. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Milton, seconded by Comm. Ainslie to deny the non-truck route special 

use truck permit request.  Unanimously Denied.   

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session 

and adjourn at 6:26 p.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk        

- 9 -



- 10 -



- 11 -



- 12 -



- 13 -



- 14 -



- 15 -



- 16 -



- 17 -



- 18 -



- 19 -



- 20 -



- 21 -



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 
    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  
Property location: 1050 Sailview Drive  
Property tax parcel: 065C-001  
Acreage: 5.39 acres  
Applicant: James & Stephanie Harden  
Applicant’s Agent:    
Property Owner: James & Stephanie Harden, 1460 Chinook Ct, SW, Lilburn 
Existing Use: Vacant 
Variance Requested: Single family dwelling  
  

Summary 

        

 

James & Stephanie Harden are requesting a variance to the rear setback for property located at 1050 
Sailview Drive. The property is 5.39 acres, which makes it one of the largest lots in the Sailview 
subdivision.  

Petition for:  Variance – Rear Setback  

        

- 22 -



2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

The final plat of 
the Sailview 
subdivision, 
above, shows 
the 100’ rear 
setback. The 
Morgan County 
Development 
Regulations 
Section 3.4.6 
(C) states: “In a 
major 
subdivision or 
private road 
subdivision, no 
building shall 

be located within 100 feet of the periphery of the subdivision site or within 250 feet of the right-of-way 
of an existing road.” In other words, the 100’  setback is a buffer that surrounds a subdivision. 

 The 
applicant’s 
site plan 
shows the 
proposed  
placement 
of the 
house 40’ 
into the 
100’ 
setback. 
This would 
leave the 
periphery 
setback in 
this 
location at 
60’. 

 

 

- 23 -



3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

The applicant’s letter states that topography is an issue on the lot, specifically relating to the placement 
of a basement.  The topography map of the property shows a slope going toward the lake and a 
drainage swale in the center of the lot. If the intent is to orient the house toward the lake and have a 
daylight basement facing the water, then the slope anywhere on the north/northwest part of the parcel 
would be appropriate. The spring noted in the applicant’s letter is not identified on any of the county 
maps, so it’s exact location will need to be verified with the applicant. The topography lines are from 
before the subdivision was constructed, so the flow of water indicated by the topography map has been 
interrupted by the road and curb stormwater drainage. However, that water has been diverted to the 
drainage easement in the center of the property, also mentioned by the applicant in his letter.  

 

 

 

 

 

- 24 -



4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

The property has three drainage easements, which are legal access ways for the orderly flow of water 
across a property. Sailview’s roads have curb and gutter, which divert water from the roads into storm 
water pipes beneath the roads. This water must exit the property via drainage easements. A larger 
version of the site plan above is attached and the storm water drop inlets and pipe under the road can 
be better seen (see blue circles). The plan indicates that the center and bottom easements contain 
underground pipes taking water across the property. The top drainage easement shows the water pipe 
stopping and the water being discharged onto the land, most likely into a ditch. The top easement takes 
the water to the lake; the bottom two easements take the water to an adjacent property.  The 
applicant’s letter indicates his desire to stay away from these drainage easements. While construction 
cannot occur within the easement for the underground pipes, they could be part of a yard and, as they 
are covered, would be undistinguishable from the rest of the yard (if installed correctly). The top 
easement ditch may or may not be unsightly, but many properties in Morgan County contain ditches.  
While it is understandable that a house may not be wanted right beside the ditch, it does not require a 
137’ space between the house and the drainage (as shown on the site plan above, and attached). 

 

 

 

 

- 25 -



5 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

The applicant’s third justification for the setback variance is that their soil tests indicate the proposed 
placement of the house is most appropriate for septic tank placement. This claim confuses Staff. Based 
on the soil survey submitted with the application, perc testing was not done on the north end of the 
property where the house is proposed. The yellow box surrounds where the soil survey was conducted, 
which is the southeast portion of the lot. The red arrows point out the limits of the survey, which 
indicate the soil scientist did not test above these lines. Perhaps the applicant has another soil survey 
and submitted the wrong one.  

Criteria for Consideration 

        
From the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance. Section 20.3.1, Required Findings for Variance Approval: 

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the property because of size, 
shape and topography; 

2. The literal application of this Ordinance would create an unnecessary hardship; 
3. A variance would not cause substantial detriment to public good and impair the purposes and 

intent of this Ordinance; 
4. A variance would not confer upon the property of the applicant any special privilege denied to 

other properties in the district; 
5. The special circumstances surrounding the request for the variance are not the result of acts of 

the applicant; 

- 26 -



6 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

6. The variance is not a request to permit a use of land, buildings, or structures which is not 
permitted by right or by conditional use in the district; 

7. The zoning proposal is consistent with all standards and criteria adopted by Morgan County; 
The variance is the minimum variance that will make possible an economically viable use of the 
land, building or structure 
 

Staff Comments 

        
While the proposed placement of the house would provide ideal views of the lake, Staff cannot see 
issues with topography, drainage easements or soil content that make the placement of the house 
elsewhere impossible. It is a large parcel and the house could reasonably be placed within the existing 
setbacks.  
 
 

- 27 -



- 28 -



- 29 -



- 30 -



- 31 -



- 32 -



- 33 -



- 34 -



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 1200 White Oak Way    

Property tax parcel: 066C-022  

Acreage: 15.1 acres  

Applicant: Stuart Magill 

Applicant’s Agent:    

Property Owner: Stuart Magill, 1551 Bennett Springs Drive, Greensboro 

Existing Use: Vacant 

Proposed Use: Single family dwelling with accessory dwelling in detached garage  

 

Summary 
Stuart Magill is 

requesting conditional 

use approval to 

construct an accessory 

building apartment in a 

detached garage 

located on 15.1 acres 

located at 1200 White 

Oak Way. The primary 

dwelling has not been 

constructed, but an 

application for a 

building permit has 

been submitted. The 

applicant has indicated 

that he wants to build 

the dwellings at the 

same time.  

 

The property is located 

within the Woods of 

Lake Oconee 

subdivision, which 

must be accessed 

through Putnam 

County. 

 

 

 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Accessory Dwelling 

        

- 35 -



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

The applicant 

submitted the 

site plan at left 

with his 

primary 

dwelling permit 

application. 

The house is 

shown 

approximately 

250’ from the 

cul-de-sac, 

which is about 

where the end 

of the driveway 

is shown on 

the aerial. The 

detached 

garage is 

shown 40’ 

northwest of 

the primary 

dwelling.  

 

The primary 

dwelling is 

4,890 square 

feet (2,445 

heated) and 

contains 3 

bedrooms. See 

attached for 

plans for the 

primary 

dwelling. The 

accessory building apartment is 600 square feet and is located on the 1st floor of the garage behind the 

garage parking area. The elevations for the detached garage show a second floor, which the application 

does not address. The floorplan shows a one bedroom/bathroom and living/kitchen area. See attached 

for accessory building apartment floor plan and elevations. The applicant submitted a septic tank permit 

for 4 bedrooms; presumably the 4th bedroom is in the accessory building apartment. 

 

The applicant’s letter states that the accessory building apartment is desired so that visiting relatives will 

have a place to stay. Consideration should be given to whether this use will meet the intent of the 

Ordinance, which states the primary purpose of accessory dwellings and accessory building apartments 

is to provide living quarters for family members to provide care to relatives in need of assistance.  Please 

see applicant’s letter, attached, and Chapter 7.2, below. 

 

 

- 36 -



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

Staff Comments 

        
The proposed structure meets the ordinance regarding square footage. The site plan shows the 

dwellings will share a driveway and the elevations show the architecture is similar enough to comply 

with the ordinance. If approved, electrical permits will ensure the electrical meter will be shared. As 

mentioned above, consideration should be given as to whether the intended purpose of the second 

dwelling meets the intent of the ordinance. 

 

 

 

 

 

- 37 -



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

Chapter 7.2   Accessory Dwellings and Accessory Building Apartments 

 

Section 7.2.1  Purpose and Intent 

 

It is the purpose of this chapter to regulate the establishment of accessory dwellings within or in 
conjunction with single-family dwellings, and apartments within accessory buildings, while preserving the 
character of single-family neighborhoods. The primary purpose of this chapter shall be to permit 
establishment of additional living quarters within single-family residential neighborhoods in order to make 
it possible for adult children to provide care and support to a parent or other relatives in need of 
assistance. A maximum of one accessory dwelling or accessory building apartment shall be permitted as 
subordinate to a new or existing single-family dwelling if the accessory dwelling or accessory building 
apartment and lot meet the requirements of this chapter. No accessory dwelling or accessory building 
apartment shall be constructed prior to the construction of the principal dwelling. 

Section 7.2.2  Conditional Use Required for Accessory Building Apartments and Detached Accessory 
Dwellings 

An accessory dwelling may be located within, or constructed as an addition to, a principal dwelling as a 
permitted use. A detached accessory dwelling or an apartment located within or attached to an accessory 
building shall require conditional use approval. If an existing structure meets or exceeds the maximum 
square footage and an additional separate dwelling exceeding the maximum square footage for an 
Accessory Dwelling is desired, the property must be split to allow for a second principal dwelling, or a 
Variance must be requested in addition to the Conditional Use.   

Section 7.2.3  Lot standards. 

 

Accessory dwellings and accessory building apartments may be constructed on lots of any size provided 

that all other applicable zoning requirements are met. Compliance with all requirements of the county 

health department for on-site sewerage and well regulations is required. An accessory dwelling or 

accessory building apartment shall not be served by a driveway separate from that serving the principal 

dwelling. Accessory dwelling and accessory building apartments shall share an electrical meter and 

address with the principal dwelling. 

 

Section 7.2.4  Occupancy standards 

 

All lots containing accessory dwellings and accessory building apartments shall be owner occupied. No 
lot shall be occupied by more than one family. This limitation shall be interpreted to accomplish its 
purpose, which is to ensure that the approval of an accessory dwelling or accessory building apartment 
shall not increase the overall density of a single-family residential neighborhood. “Owner-occupied” shall 
mean a property owner who makes his or her legal residence at the site, as evidenced by voter 
registration, vehicle registration, or similar means, and resides at the site more than six months of any 
given year, and at no time receives rent for the owner-occupied unit.  

Section 7.2.5  Subdivision 

 

The accessory dwelling, accessory building containing an apartment, or the lot on which such accessory 
dwelling or accessory building apartment is located, shall not be subdivided or otherwise segregated in 
ownership from the principal dwelling unit or the land on which the principal dwelling unit is located. 

- 38 -



 
 

5 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

Section 7.2.6 Size and Connectivity 

 

An accessory dwelling located within or attached to a principal dwelling shall be connected by conditioned 
space. Accessory dwellings attached to a principal dwelling cannot be attached by a breezeway or 
unconditioned space such as a garage. Detached accessory dwellings are limited to 800 heated square 
feet and 1,000 square feet total (including unheated square footage such as garages and porches). 
Detached accessory dwellings may be on a slab or crawlspace foundation only; no basements are 
allowed. Accessory building apartments are limited to 800 heated square feet and must have 2 hour rated 
separation from the rest of the accessory building.  

Section 7.2.7 Architectural design 

 

The addition of an accessory dwelling, attached or detached, shall be allowed only if the single-family 
appearance and character of the lot and neighborhood are maintained. The design of the accessory 
dwelling shall be consistent with the design of the principal dwelling and shall maintain the style, 
appearance and character of the principal dwelling, and shall use matching materials, colors, window 
style, and comparable roof appearance. Detached accessory dwellings must be stick built on site; 
manufactured homes, storage containers, metal buildings or pre-built wood framed structures shall not be 
used as accessory dwellings. 

Section 7.2.8 Entrances and stairs 

 

Only one entrance shall be allowed per fronting street. Exterior stairways shall not be constructed on the 
front of the principal dwelling or accessory building apartment. 

Section 7.2.9 Affidavit recording requirements 

 

Prior to issuance of a building permit by the Planning and Development office, the applicant shall record 
the affidavit with the Morgan County Clerk of Court and provide a copy of the recorded affidavit. Said 
affidavit shall identify the address and legal description of the property and state the following: the 
property owner resides in either the principal dwelling for more than six months each year, that the owner 
will notify any prospective purchaser of the property of the limitations and requirements of this chapter, 
and that the permit will be revoked if the accessory dwelling unit at any time fails to meet the 
requirements of this chapter. The document shall run with the land and bind all current and future 
property owners, and the owner’s assigns, beneficiaries and heirs.  

Section 7.2.10 Enforcement 

 

Morgan County retains the right (with reasonable notice) to inspect the accessory dwelling or accessory 

building apartment for compliance with this chapter. 

 

- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -


	Top
	Item2.	Morgan Medical Center FY2020 Audit Presentation
	Item3.	December 01, 2020 Minutes
	12-01-2020 BOC Minutes - DRAFT complete

	Item4.	Dec. 15, 2020 Minutes
	12-15-2020 BOC Minutes - Draft complete

	Item5.	Dec. 17, 2020 Minutes
	12-17-2020 BOC Minutes - Draft complete

	Item6.	December 2020 Financials
	Dec. 2020 financials

	Item7.	Harden Variance request
	staffreport.december.harden.var

	Item8.	Magill Conditional Use request
	staffreport.december.magill.cu

	Item9.	County Manager Report
	Item10.	Public Comments on Agenda Items
	Bottom

